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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated and parent company financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020,

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company which forms part of the Melite Retail Group, is to act as a finance
company by advancing amounts on [oan to its subsidiary Melite Properties S.r.| (Melite Properties). The
subsidiary holds investment property in ltaly through its rights to properties which it lets out to related and
non-related parties.

The principal activity of the Melite Retail Group is the operation of international refail and franchise networks
involving costume jewelry and related fashion accessories,

Financial performance

Revenue for the Group, which was primarily generated from rental operations, amounts to €1,569,253
(2019: €4,693,812) - net of concessions granted to tenants amounting to €2,768,720 (2019: €nil), resulting
in & gross loss of €695,848 (2019: gross profit of €1,467,596). The decrease reflects the closure of outlets
during the COVID-19 pandemic that caused disruption to the economlc environment in ltaly as from the end
of February 2020. The Group registered a loss before tax of €4,829,978 (2019: 1,019,298) after taking Into
consideration impairments in respect of receivables and on the value of leasehold premia of €1,327,988
and €1,026,118 respectively, which are other consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Financial Position

The Group's total asset base stands at €22,175,674 {2019; €28,583,124). The main non-current assets
comprise right-of-use assets of €19,245,756 (2019: €24,778,967). At 31 December 2020, the Group’s
current assels amounted to €1,723,687 (2019: €2,502,001) while current liabilities amounted to €2,270,208
(2019: €2,369,188). The Group’s non-current liabilities amounted to €18,581,449 (2019: €21,292,128)
which mainly consist of borrowings of €9,914,997 (2019; €8,972,097) and lease liabilities of €8,666,452
(2019: €12,320,031).

Financial risk management and uncertainties

For principal risks and uncertainties, refer to Note 2, ‘Financlal Risk Management' that details the key risk
factors including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and the Group’s approach towards managing these

risks.
Business update

The emergence of the COVID-19 pandsmic in early 2020, has caused disruption to businesses and
economic activity, and this has been significant to the Melite Finance Group.

The Company's dependence on Melite Properties

The Melite Finance Group is largely dependent on the business and prospects of its subsidiary, Melite
Properties. As set out In the Prospectus, the proceeds from the issue of the Bonds were loaned, in part
(circa €5.9 million), by the Company to Melite Properties for the purposes of: seftlement of debis due; and
refurbishing and embellishing retail outlets located in leading locations in ltaly over which, from time to time,
it enjoys the rights atfached to the iease of such immovable property, andfor for acquiring such rights over
additional retail outlets for sub-letting. The continued servicing of the Bonds is entirely dependent — and the
redemption of the Bonds is in part dependent — on Melite Properiies being able to fulfil its repayment
obligations towards the Company In terms of the said loan.
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Directors’ report - continued
Business update - continued

The current sftuation

Melite Properties’ principal operation consists of the letting and sub-letting of retail outlets located in ltaly,
and therefore the longer-term prospects of the Melite Finance Group are intrinsically linked to the
development in the retaii real estate market in Italy, particularly the market for prime locations on the primary
high streets of the ltalian peninsula and Isfands, The Melite Finance Group's commercial lease agreements
typically relate to retail outlets located in the prime positions in high streets of cities such as Milan and Turin
and in the main retail area of towns such as Pavia, Como and Treviso.

Both the retail landscape and the commercial real estate landscape in Northern taly, where the vast majority
of the Stores are located, have been subjected to significant and unprecedented disruption as a result of
the pandemic. Following the outbreak of COVID-19 in Italy, particularly in Northern Italy where most of the
leases held by Melite Properties are situated, all retail outlets in Italy were shut with effect from 10 March
2020. Retall outlets were permitted to re-open as from 18 May 2020 but virtually all of Melite Properties’
tenants have elected not to re-open for the major part of the year, in common with many retail outlets across
ltaly. Further to a spike in the number of positive COVID-19 cases recorded across ltaly over the latter
months of 2020, the Italian government re-introduced a series of restrictive measures as from early
November. Such measures subsisted throughout the month of December and are only currently being
gradually relaxed in parts of Italy. During this period, retail activity was intermittent across most regions of
ltaly, particularly in the regions in which Melite Properties’ tenants operate, The current outlook for the retalil
segment is also rather bleak due to the devastating effect that COVID-19 has had on the Italian economy.
Demand has been very weak for several months and is expected to remain as such possibly up to mid to
late 2021, : :

Melite Properties' tenants, all of which operate in the retali sector, have likewise been severely negatively
affected, resulting in such tenants being unable to maintain rental payment obligations at the rates prevailing
before the emergence of the pandemic. Melite Properties’ management remains In constant contact with
both its landlords and tenants with respect to possible revisions of existing payment terms in consequence
of the closure of outlets resulting from the lockdown implemented across ltaly. The Company has so far
maintained payments of rent to landlords (as reduced, where possible, further to negotiations conducted by
management) and remains in contact with them as this is considered essential for the purpose of the
safeguarding of the company's property rights over the Stores it has retained and/or plans on retaining.

Melite Italia S.r.| (“Melite Italia”), a sister company of Melite Finance p.l.c..that was the principal tenant of
the properties held by Melite Properties, has been adversely affected by the developments in 2020. The
company had already been registering a marked reduction in turnover and margins on a store by store
basis, which primarily reflected difficulties being faced by its primary franchise Accessorize. Melite Italia was
in the process of implementing a plan to restructure its operations and its shareholder (Melite Retait Limited)
had agreed to inject the funding required to finance this turnaround plan. The onset of COVID-19 has
precipitated matters and significantly affected the turnaround plan and its related funding requirement, which
led the board of directors of Melite Italia to reconsider the viability of this operation. In this context, the board
of directors of Melite Italia has elected to commence a process of voluntary administration. This process
Included, infer alia, the termination of the 21 sub-lease agreements that it held at that time with Melite
Properties. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had receivables from Melite Italia amounting to €1,721,595,
arising from rent payable which was receivable three months in arrears in line with the rental agreements.
The fact that Melite ltalia has elected to commence a process of voluntary administration, has triggered a
doubt on the recoverabllity of this balance, requiring an impairment provision of €1.3 million.
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Directors’ report - continued

Business update - continued

Melite ltalia had informed Melite Properties of the intention to enter into a restructuring of its business and
debts in terms of a procedure available in terms of ltalian law. Accordingly, sourcing alternative tenants for
the Stores which were operated by Melite ltalla remained & key priority for the Company and Melite
Properties {together the "Melite Finance Group”). On the advice of commercial real estate specialists, the
Company entered into profit-sharing agreements with Melite Italia as the likelihood of success in sourcing
new tenants was deemed as greater should the stores be operational and stocked, rather than closed. This
arrangement remalned in place through 2020 and the initial months of 2021 other than those periods when
further COVID-18 waves in Htaly led to further lockdown decrees and the shops remaining shut.

Restructuring plan

Following the onset of COVID-18 and the decision by Melite ltalia to enter into voluntary administration, a
restructuring plan was agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company that included the rescission of
nine out of the twenty six stores held by Melite Properties while trying to find new tenants for the remaining
stores. Qut of the total of nine leases identified for rescinding by the Board of Diractors, Melite Properties
has rescinded four stores during the year ended 31 December 2020 and is in the process of rescinding
another two stores in 2021, This is being effected in order to channel all available cash towards safeguarding
what the Board of Directors of Melite Properties believe to be the more valuable leases that are essential
to secure the fulfilment of its obligations towards the Company and, in turn, the Melite Finance Group's long
term survival. The leases that were rescinded relate to those stores (such as stores located within
commercial centres) which, based on advice from real estate specialists, were expected to take longer to
sub-let. Although the rescission of these lsases may, in terms of the relevant contracts, be subject to early
termination penalties, the Board of Directors of Melite Properties, having sought legal advice from the
company's ltalian legal advisors, have been advised that it is unlikely that g claim for payment of such
penalties would be upheld by a court of law, given the context in which the leases are being términated.

Following the rescission of these contracts, Melite Properties has been left with a total of twenty stores (the
“Retained Stores”), with a combined valuation as at 31 December 2020 of €8.7 million. Notwithstanding the
challenging economic climate and rapidly evolving conditions, management has so far concluded or
retained agreements for the sub-letting of six of these stores to third party operators. Furthermore, in April
2021, management have concluded negotiations and have accepted an Irrevocable offer from a third party
retail operator which has secured the sub-letting of another nine stores as from 1 June 2021 for a period of
twenty four months. Management are also in discussions for the sub-letting of an additiona! two stores with
the first few months being subject to a profit-sharing agreement. The conclusion of these negotiations and
the possible conclusion of the latter mentioned agreements, leaves the Company with three stores to be
sub-let to third parties or rescinded, and for which management have already received offers for two of
these properties and negotiations are expected to commence soon.
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Directors’ report - continued
Business update - continued
Financing

The process of identifying new tenants requires time, not least due to the complicated frading conditions in
view of the adverse effect of COVID-19 on the retail sector in Italy. COVID-19 has dragged on beyond initial
expectations and its impact on the retail sector in ltaly has been far more significant than anticipated. In
the intervening period until Melite Properties sources new tenants for its properties, and in order to protect
its assets, it needed o finance the payment of rent due to its landlords. The continued and regular payment
of rent to landlords is imperative to ensure that Melite Properties does not have to forfeit the property rights
that it holds. These property rights are the principal asset held by this business and represent the underlying
assets secured through the share pledge granted in favour of the Security Trustee as security in favour of
the holders of the Bonds (the “bondholders”). Without these property rights, the Melite Finance Group will
have no assets to generate the funds required to service interest and eventually redeem the Bonds.

Melite Finance is owned entirely by Melite Retail Limited (Melite Retail}. The ultimate shareholders of Melite
Retail have injected an amiount of €1.1million, which based on the restructuring plan, was used to finance
rental payments to the landlords of the Retained Stores in the intervening period until such time as Melite
Properties identified new tenanis.

The agreed €1.1million financing was injected during 2020 through two instruments as follows:
s €0.63 million in the form of a capital contribution into Melite Finance by Alf.Mizzi & Sons Ltd, MMGH
Ltd and Daystar Holdings Ltd, that will be repayable at the option of the Company after the
redemption of the Bonds; and .
s €0.47 million in the form of an interest free loan by Andrew Ganado Limited and by GAN Lid af the
level of Melite Properties that will be repayable through a bullet repayment due after five years.

An additional undertaking totalling €0.35 million has been provided by the shareholders, subject to
bondholder approval of certain changes to terms of the bond. Alf. Mizzi & Sons Ltd, MMGH Lid and Daystar
Holdings Ltd have since waived the conditionality insofar as relates to their combined share of €0.2 milllon.
The balance of the €0.15 million support by Andrew Ganado Ltd and by GAN Litd remains conditional on
bondholder approval.

As part of the fulfilment of the restructuring plan set out during the year, the Board has also been successful
in obtaining a loan amounting to €0.449 million from the Malta Development Bank under the COVID
Guarantee Scheme which enabled the Company to service, in full, the Bond interest payment which was
due in November 2020.

The recent agreements reached with new tenants together with the funding made available has provided
relief to the Melite Finance Group and the underlying business in this unprecedented, and extremely difficult
and uncertain time, allowing the Board of Directors of the Company, and Melite Properties’ management,
to forge a plan which would see the Melite Finance Group retain as much as possible of the value of the
property rights it holds and on which the future servicing and repayment of the Bonds is ultimately
dependent.

Current cash flow projections indicate a manageable shortfall in the coming 12 months, but a shortfall of
around €0.6 million is indicated for the financial year ending 31 December 2022. The position outlined in
the preceding paragraphs allows the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into discussions with the
bondholders In relation to the revision of certain terms of the bond in Issue, reflecting the economic realities
that the Group has, and will, continue to face. In parallel, the Board will discuss with the shareholders further
funding that could be made available. Should any of these discussions be unsuccessful, the arrangements
in place should allow the Board time to seek alternative sources of funding In the context.of the cash flow
projections to endeavour that adequate capital levels and liquidity resources are maintained.
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Directors’ report - continued
Business update - continued

Based on the analysis referred to above, the directors continue to consider the going concern assumption
in the preparation of the Group's financial statements as appropriate as at the date of authorisation for issue
of the 2020 financial statements. However, the above conditions surrounding the retail sector in ltaly, the
Impact of the pandemic on the operations and financial position of the Group, and the tenancy risk that will
remain, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt on the ability of

the Group to continue as a going concern,

Results and dividends

The income statements and the statements of comprehensive income are set out on page 33. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the current year.

Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a finance company by advancing amounts on loan to its
subsidiary Melite Properties. The subsidiary holds investment property in ltaly through its rights to properties
which it leases out to related and non-related parties. In this context, the Company's trading prospects are
dependent on the performance of the companies within the Group to which amounts have been advanced
by the Company. The business activity of Melite Properties is the holding of investment properties that are
all concentrated in the ltalian property rental and retail sector.

COVID-19 has caused disruption to businesses and economic activity, and this has been significant on the
Melite Finance Group, and has resulted in certain conditions that indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.

The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is critically dependent on the prospects and timing
of the recovery of the retail sector in ltaly, and its ability to identify, and retain, tenants for its properties
while, at the same time, addressing short and medium term funding needs following the impact of the
pandemic on the Group's balance sheet and cashflows.

In assessing the appropriateness of the going concern assumption in the preparation of Melite Finance
p.l.c.'s consolidated financial statements, the directors have taken into account the nature of planned
actions, the plans actually realised to date and the likelihood of occurrence of those not yef realised. Based
on the above considerations, it is the view of the Board of Directors that there is a reasonable expectation
that Melite Finance p.l.c. is able to continue in business for a period of at least 12 months from the end of
the reporting period. Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements. The financial statements however do not include any adjustments in the event that the
assumptfons do not materialise as planned.




MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Directors’ report - continued
Directors
The directors of the company who held office during the year were:

Paul Mercieca - Chairman
Jacqueline Briffa

Alan Frendo Jones
Andrew Ganado

Christlan Ganado

Stanley Portelli

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the directors of the Company are not required to retire by
rotation.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are required by the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) to prepare consolidated financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of each reporting
period and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

» ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances;
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
Inappropriate to presume that the .group and the parent company will continue in business as a
going concern.

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materlal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 3886).
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure in terms of the Listing Rules
Going concern statement pursuant to Listing Rule 5.62

After making enquiries and consldering the developments and circumstances that have been articulated In
note 1.1.1, the directors have reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The directors continue to consider the going concern
assumption In the preparation of the Group's financial statements as appropriate as at the date of
authorisation for issue of the 2020 financial statements. The conditions surrounding the retali sector in Italy,
the impact of the pandemic on the operations and financial position of the Group, and the tenancy risk that
will remain, indicate the existence of a materiaf uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt on the ability
of the Company to continue as a going concern.
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Directors’ report - continued

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Statement by the Directors on the Financial Statements and Other Information included in the
Annual Report

The directors declare that to the best of their knowledge, the consolidated financial statements included in
the Annual Report are prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Company and that this report includes a fair review of the development and performance
of the business and position of the Company, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces.

..On'Behalf of the board

/ ﬁ%

~N\

L_“ 2o z
Paul nfoéa' Stanley Portelli

Chairman Director

Registered Office: /
Level 3, Valletta Buildings, :
South Street

Valletta

VLT 1103

Malta

30 April 2021
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
Introduction

The Listing Rules issued by the Listing Authority require companies listed on the Official List of the Malta
Stock Exchange to endeavour to adopt and observe The Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance
contained in Appendix 5.1 to Chapter 5 of the Listing Rules {the "Code”).

Although the Code sets out (non-mandatory) recommended principles of good practice, the Board of
Directors of the Company (the "Board” or the “Directors”) consider that such practices are generally in the
best interests of the Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders, and that compliance with the Code
evidences the Company's and the directors' commitment to high standards of good corporate governance.

This Corporate Governance Statement (the “Statement”) sets out the organisational structures, controls
practices and processes in place within the Company and explains how these effectively achieve the goals
set out in the Code. For this purpose, the Statement will make reference to the pertinent provisions and
principles of the Code and set out the manner in which the directors believe these have been adhered to.
Where the Company has not complied with any of the principles of the Code, this Statement provides an
explanation for such non-compliance. Reference in this Statement to compliance with the principles of the
Code means compliance with the Code's main principles and provisions.

The Board has carried out a review of the Company's compliance with the Code during the period under
review and is hereby reporting on the extent of its adoption of the provisions and principles of the Code for
the financial period being reported, as required in terms of Listing Rule 5.97.

Compliance

The Company has adopted a corporate decision-making and supervisory structure that is tailored to suit its
requirements and designed to ensure the existence of adequate controls and procedures within the
Company, whilst retaining an element of flexibility essential to allow the Company to react promplly and
efficiently to circumstances arising In respect of Its business, taking into account its size and the economic
conditions in which it operates.

The directors are of the view that it has employed structures which are most suitable and complementary
for the size, nature, operations and level of complexity of the Company. Accordingly, in general the directors
believe that the Company has adopted appropriate structures to achieve an adequate level of good -
corporate governance, together with an adequate system of control in line with the Company's
requirements.

The Company has no employees of its own and its principal purpose is to act as a financing vehicle for the
Melite Finance Group, consisting of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Melite Properties S.r.l.
As a resuit, the directors deem some of the principles and provisions of the Code to be disproportionate or
inapplicable to the Company, as explained further below.
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

Principle 1: The Board

The directors believe that for the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the
requirements of this principle and the relative Code provisions.

The Board Is composed of members who are fit and proper to direct and manage the business of the
Company with honesty, competence and integrity. All the members of the Board are fully aware of, and
conversant with, the statutory and regulatory requirements connected to the business of the Company and
its status as a listed company and the Board is cognisant of its accountability for its own performance and
that of its delegates. The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for:

devising the corporate and business strategy of the Company;

setting and reviewing internal policies, procedures and controls of the Company;

the overall management and supervision of the Company;

reviewing and evaluating internal contrel procedures, financial performance and business risks and
opportunities facing the Company.

Throughout the year under review, the Executive Director and the Financial Controller reported to the
Board, at regular intervals or as and when the need arose,

The Executive Director is responsible for the overall day-to-day management of Melite Propertles S.r.l.,
being the main trading and operating arm of the Melite Finance Group, leading its senior management team
(consisting principally of the Executive Director in his capacity as executive director of Melite Properties
S.rl. and the Financial Controller) acting as a channel of communication between the Board, senior
management and other individuals within the Melite Finance Group, with a view to ensuring an effective
contribution to the decision-making process.

The Financlal Controlier leads the finance function of the Company and plays a central role In the
preparation of the Company's consolidated financlal statements, the appraisal of investment opportunities,
as well as the monitoring of the operational performance of the Company's business, cash flow and capital
requirements, The Financial Controller is also generally responsible for ensuring that the Company
complies with its statutory financial and fiscal reporting obligations.

The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to the Audit Committee, under farmal terms of reference
approved by the Board. Further detail in relation to the Audit Committee may be found in the sections
headed 'Principles 4 and &' of this Statement hereunder.

Principle 2: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Given that the Company acts as the financing arm of the Melite Finance Group and does not carry out other
operations of its own, the Company has not appointed a Chief Executive Officer. Nevertheless, it has
appointed a separate Chalrman, whose role is to lead the Board. During the period under review, Mr Paul
Mercieca (an independent non-executive director of the Company) occupied the post of Chairman.

At the same time, the responsibility for the day-to-day management of Melite Properties S.r.,, the latter
being the operating and trading company of the Melite Finance Group, was subsumed into the role of
Executive Director occupied by Mr Andrew Ganado, the sole Executive Director of the Company, with effect
from the resignation of Mr Manginl (the latier having formerly occupied the role of General Manager of Melite
Properties S.r.l.) on 24 May 2020,
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Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance - continued
Principle 2: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer - continued

The Chairman is responsible for:

¢ leading the Board and setting its agenda;

« ensuring that the Board is in receipt of precise, timely and objective information to enable the Board
to take sound and commercially reasonable decisions and effectively monitor the performance of
the Company;

» encouraging and supporting active engagement by all directors for discussion of complex and
contentious issues and ensuring that all directors are afforded ample opportunity to contribute fo
the issues on the agenda and present their views; and

« ensuring effective communication and relationship management with the Company's shareholders.

Principle 3: Composition of the Board

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, the board of directors of the Company shall consist
of a minimum of six (6) directors and a maximum of ten (10) directors.

Directors are appointed during the Company's Annual General Meeting for periods of one year until the
next annual general meeting, at which they may stand again for re-election. The Articles of Association of
the Company clearly set out the procedures to be followed in the appointment of directors, the salient
aspects of which are summarised hereunder:

« Any member or members who in the aggregate hold not less than two hundred thousand (200,000)
shares having voting rights in the Company are entitled to nominate fit and proper persons for
appointment as directors of the Company;

¢ Inthe event that there are either Jess nominations than there are vacancies on the Board, of if there
are as many nominations as there are vacancles on the Board, then each nominated person shall
be automatically appointed a director;

» In the event that there are more nominations than vacancies on the Board, then an election shall
take place in accordance with the procedure laid down in the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The Board is comprised of one (1) executive director and five (5) non-executive directors, ali of whom were
appointed upon incorporation of the Company. As at the date of this Statement, the directors of the
Company are:

Director Capacity Date of Appoiniment
Paul Mercieca Independent Non-Executive (Chairman) 27 September 2018
Stanley Portelli Independent Non-Executive 27" September 2018
Jacqueline Briffa Non-Executive Director 27" Septernber 2018
Alan Frendo Jones Non-Executive Director 27" September 2018
Christian Ganado Non-Executive Director 27% September 2018
Andrew Ganado Executive Director 27% September 2018

For the purpose of Code Provision 3.2, two of the directors are considered by the Board to be independent
within the meaning of the Listing Rules, such independent directors being Mr. Paul Mercieca and Dr. Stanley
Portelli.

10
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

Principle 3: Composition of the Board - continued

The non-executlve directors contribute to the strategic development of the Company and the creation of
long-term growth of the Company and are responsible for:

» constructively challenging and developing strategy;

+ monitoring reporting of performance;

+  sorufinising performance of management; and

* ensuring the integrity of financiat information, financial controls and risk management systems.

Save as disclosed above, none of the non-executive directors of the Company:

{a) are or have been employed in any capacity by the Company;

(b) receive significant additional remuneration from the Company;

(c) have close family ties with any of the executive members of the Board:

(d) have been within the last three years an engagement pariner or a member of the audlt team of the
present or past external auditor of the Company; and

(e) have a significant business relationship with the Company.

In terms of Code Provision 3.4, each non-executive director has declared in writing o the Board that hefshe
undertakes: _

+ to maintain in all circumstances histher independence of analysis, decision and action;

+ notto seek or accept any unreasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his/her

» independence; and ‘
to clearly express his/her opposition in the event that he/she finds that a decision of the Board may

harm the Company.

Principles 4 and 5: The Responsibllities of the Board and Board Meetings

The Board of Directors Is entrusted with the overall direction, administration and management of the
Company and meets on a regular basis to discuss and take decisions on matters concerning the strategy,
operational performance and financial performance of the Company.

In fulfilling its mandate, the Board assumes responsibility, to the extent applicable and possible to:

a) establish appropriate corporate governance standards;

b) review, evaluate and approve, on a regular basis, long-term plans for the Company;

¢) review, evaluate and approve the Company's budgets and forecasts;

d) review, evaluate and approve majer resource allocations and capital investments;

e) review the financial and operating results of the Company;

f)  ensure appropriate policies and procedures are In place to manage risks and internal control;

g) review, evaluate and approve the overall corporate organisation structure, the assignment of
management responsibilities and plans for senior management development including succession;

h) review, evaluate and approve compensation to senior management;

i}y ensure effective communication with sharsholders, stakeholders and the market.

in fulfilling its responsibilities, the Board continuously assesses and monitors the Company’s present and
future operations, opportunities, threats, and risks in the external environment, and lts current and future
strengths and weaknesses in its internal environment.

The Board delegates certain specific responsibilities to the Audit Committee,

1
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued
Principles 4 and 5: The Responsibilities of the Board and Board Meetings - continued

The Board believes that it has systems in place to fully comply with Principle 5 and the relative Code
Provisions, in that it adopts a system designed to ensure reasonable notice of meetings of the Board and
to ensure that the directors receive, where required, the relevant material for discussion in advance of
meetings so as to provide adequate time for directors to adequately and suitably prepare themselves and
enable them to make an informed decision during meetings of the Board. In light of the significantly
increased frequency of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year under review, notice periods
were often reduced to a minimum, however at all times seeking to allow for aftendance by all Board
members and, where necessary, the Financlal Controller.

The directors are assisted by the company secretary, who is consulted to ensure compliance with statutory
requirements and with continuing listing obligations, The company secretary keeps minutes of all meetings
of the Board and of lts committees, which minutes are subsequently circulated fo the Board as soon as
practicable after the meeting.

The company secretary also malntains detailed records of ali dealings - by directors of the Company,
directors of its subsidiary and, senior management - in the Company's bonds, and assists the Board and
senior management in belng duly informed of and conversant with their obligations emanating from the
Market Abuse Regulation (EU Regulation 596/2014) and ensuring compliance therewith, and prevention
and detection of insider dealing, unlawful disclosure of inside information and, or market abuse. In
particular, cognisant of the material consequences of non-compliance with MAR and the effects thereof on
investor confidence and market integrity, the Board has in place written policies and procedures relating to
the keeping of insiders’ lists, dealing in bonds of the Company, and procedures for persons in possession
of inside information.

The directors have access to independent professional advice on any aspect-of thelr duties and
responsibilities, or the business and acfivities of the Company, at the Company's expense should they so
require. ‘

In light of the difficulties and challenges encountered by the Company and the underlying business since
the onset, in Italy, of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020, the Board felt the need to constantly monitor
the evolving situation with a view of taking such measures as it may have considered necessary and
appropriate in the circumstances, in a timely manner. Accordingly, a total of fifty three (53) Board meetings
were held during the year under review. The number of board meetings attended by the Individual directors
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Name Capagity Meetings attended while in office
#aul Mercieca Independent Non-Executive (Chairman) 53/53
Stanley Portelli Independent Non-Executive 51/53
Jacqueline Briffa ' Non-Executive Director 53/53
Alan Frendo Jones Non-Executive Director 52/53
Christian Ganado Non-Executive Director 51/53

Andrew Ganado Executive Director 50/53
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MELITE FINANCE P.L..C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued
Principle 6: Information and Professional Development

On joining the Board, Board members underwent an introductory induction programme, whereby the
company secretary informed the incoming members of their statutory duties and obligations, the
requirements and implications of relevant legislation, as well as their rights, duties, and obligations under
the Company's Articles of Association and internal policies and procedures.

The Directors recelved and reviewed periodic information on the Group's financlal performance and
position, particularly since March 2020,

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Board’s Performance

The Board does not consider it necessary to appoint a committee to carry out a performance evaluation of
its role, as the Board's performance is evaluated on an ongoing basis by, and is subject to the constant
scrutiny of, the Board itself, the Company’s shareholders, the market and the rules by which the Company
is regulated as a listed company.

Principle 8;: Committees

The directors believe that, due to the Company’s size and operations, it is not necessary to establish
committees regarding remuneration, board evaluation and nominations as suggested by the Code and the
directors have formulated the view that these functions can efficiently and effectively be undertaken by the

'Board itself.

In view of the above, the Board undertakes an annual review of the remuneration structure applicable to
directors {specifically the independent non-executive directors), and carries out a self-evaluation of the
performance of the Board, as and when considered necessary. The aggregate remuneration that may be
paid to the Company directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting

of the Company.

Audit Committee

In preparation of the listing of its securities on the regulated market, the Board established an Audit
Committee (the "Committee”), and has formally set out Terms of Reference governing the scope of its
composition, role, functions, powers, duties and responsiblilities, as well as the procedures and processes
to be complied with in its activities.

The principal purpose of the Commitiee Is to protect the interest of the Company and the Company's
shareholders and bondholders, and to assist the directors in conducting their role effectively vis-a-vis its
responsibilities over the financial reporting processes, financial policies and internal controls structures.
The Audit Committee oversees the conduct of the external audit and acts to facilitate communication
hetween the Board, management and the external auditors. The external auditors are invited to attend the
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board.
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financlal Statements - 31 December 2020

Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance - continued
Principle 8: Committees - continued

Audit Commiitee - continued

The Audit Committee is expected to deal with and advise the Board on issues of financial risk, control and
compliance, and assoclated assurance of the Company, including: :

i.  ensuring that the Company adopis, maintains and, at all times, applies appropriate accounting and
financial reporting processes and procedures;

ii.  monitoring of the audit of the Company's annuai accounts;

iil. facilitating the independence of the external audit process and addressing issues arising from the
audit process, as applicable;

iv.  reviewing of the systems and procedures of internal control implemented by management and of
the financial statements, disclosures and adequacy of financial reporting;

v.  making recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment of the external auditors and
the approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, following the
relative appointment by the shareholders in the annual general meeting;

vi.  monitoring and reviewing of the external auditors’ independence and, in particular, the provision of
additional services to the Company,

vii.  considering and evaluating the arm's length nature of related party transactions that the Company
carries out to ensure that the execution of any such transactions are, indeed, at arm's length and
on a sound commerclal basis and ultimately in the best interests of the Company;

vili.  ensuring that the Company, at all imes, maintains sffective financial risk management and internal

* financlal and auditing control systems, including compliance functions; ‘

ix. assessing any potential conflicts of interests between the duties of directors and their respective

private interests, or their duties and interests unrelated to the Company.

Additionally, it is responsible for monitoring the performance of the entity borrowing funds from the
Company, to ensure that budgets are achieved and if not that correctlve action is taken as necessary.

With reference 1o the Audit Committee’s role and function of evaluating any proposed transaction to be
entered into by the Company and a related party, it should be noted that the Audit Committee has a crucial
rale in monitoring the activities and conduct of the buslness of Melite Properties S.r.l, in so far as these may
affect the ability of the Company to fulfil its obligations in terms of the €8,250,000 secured bonds of a
nominal value of €100 per bond redeemable at their nominal value on 23 November 2028 bearing interest
at the rate of 4.85% per annum and having ISIN MT0002031202 (the “Bonds”). Such role is specified in the
Audit Committes's Terms of Reference and also forms the subject of a contractual undertaking by the
Company in favour of Melite Properties S.r.| (in the [oan agreement regulating the transfer of part of the
Bond Issue proceeds by the Company to Melite Properties S.r.]), pursuant to which Melite Properties S.r.|
has vested the Audit Committee of the Company with certain monitering functions in light of the Company's
dependence on Melite Properties S.r.l.

The Audit Commiitee is made up entirely of non-executive directors, the majority of whom are independent
of the Company. Audit Committee members are appointed for a period of three years, unless, their position
as member of the Audit Committee is terminated earlier by the Board; or a member of the Audit Committee
resigns or Is otherwise removed from his/her position as a director of the Company (resulting in automatic
termination of membership within the Audit Committee). During the year under review, the Audit Committee
was composed of Paul Mercieca (independent non-executive director, Chairman of the Board and Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Stanley Portelli (independent non-executive director and Audit Committes
member) and Jacqueline Briffa (non-executive director and Audit Committee member).
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Annual Report and Consclidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued
Principle 8: Committees - continued

Audit Committee - continued

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, appointed by the Board, is entrusted with reporting to the Board on
the workings and findings of the Audit Committee. Mr Paul Mercieca occupied the post of Chairman of the
Audit Committee during the period under review.

Paul Mercieca and Jacqueline Briffa are considered by the Board to be competent in accounting and/or
auditing in terms of the Listing Rules, based on their respective extensive experience occupying financial
management and auditing roles within various private and public entities, as well as their respective skills
and competencies in financial reporting, financial management, financial auditing and general financial
advisory.

For the reasons indicated above with respect to the increased frequency, during the year under review, of
the meeting of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee met more frequently than it did in the preceding
financial period. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee met thirteen (13) times.
The meetings were attended by all its members. In 2021, the Audit Committee is scheduled to meet mare
frequently than the statutory minimum of four times.

Principle 9: Remuneration Statement

In terms of Rule 8A.4 of the Code, the Company is to include a remuneration statement in its annual report
which shall include details of the remuneration policy of the Company and the financial packages of the
Board of Directors.

In terms of Article 63 of the Articles of Association of the Company, it is the shareholders of the Company
in the General Meeting who determine the maximum annual aggregate remuneration payabile to the
directors. The aggregate amount approved for this purpose during the last Annual General Meeting was
€20,000 plus VAT.

None of the directors of the Company is employed by the Company. The difectors are party to service
contracts with the Company.

No part of the remuneration paid to the directors is performance-based, and the executive director received
no additional remuneration from the Company for occupying such role. None of the directors, in their
capacity as a director of the Company, is entitled to profit sharing, share options or pension benefits.

The independent non-executive directors received €20,000 plus VAT In aggregate for services rendered
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principle 10: Relations with shareholders (and bondholders) and the market

The Company is committed to ensuring an open channel of communication with its shareholders,
bondholders and the wider market. The publication of interim and annual financial statements, together with
ongoing company announcements keep the market informed of develcpments relating to the Company
and, in the case of bondholders, of developments pertinent to their investment in the Bonds. The Board
feels that such communication provides the market with adequate information about its activities. In
addition, the Company’s website (http:/meliteproperties.com/melite-finance/) acts a central source of
information about the Company and, its business.
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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

Principle 11: Conflicts of Interest

The directors ars fully aware of their responsibility to always act In the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders irrespective of whoever appointed or elected them to serve on the Board.

On joining the Board and regularly thereafter, directors and officers of the Company are informed and
reminded of their obligations on dealing in securities of the Company within the parameters of law and
Listing Rules. The Company has also established an internal code of dealing and reporting procedures.

It is the practice of the Board that when a potential conflict of interest arises in connection with any
fransaction or other matter, the potential conflict of interest is declared, so that steps may be taken to ensure
that such items are appropriately addressed. By viriue of the Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation, the
directors are obliged to keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interest that could potentially
conflict with that of the Company. The Board member concerned shall not take part in the assessment by
the Board as to whether a conflict of interest exists. A director shall not vote in respect of any contract,
arrangement, transaction or proposal in which he/she has a material interest in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The Board believes that this is a procedure that
achieves compliance with both the letter and rationale of Principle Eleven of the Code.

Any material transactions with related parties, which pose intrinsic potential conflicts of interests, require
the approval of the Audit Committee, which is charged with ensuring that such transactions are necessary
for the conduct of the Company's business and are transacted on an arm's length basis.

Save as stated below, the directors are not aware of any potential conflicts of interest which could relate fo
their roles within the Company:

» During the year under review, Andrew Ganado and Christian Ganado were officers of Melite
Properties S.r. and other related companies of which Melite Retail Limited is the parent (the “Melite
Retail Group™), while Jacqueline Briffa, Alan Frendo Jones occupled the post of directors of Melite
Properties S.r.l. For this reason, these directors are susceptible to conflicts between the potentially
diverging interests of the different members of the Melite Finance Group and the Melite Retail
Group, respectively;

o Melite Italia S.r.J, a company forming part of the Melite Retail Group, leases a substantial number
of immovable properties over which Melite Properties S.r.| enjoys certain rights. This commercial
relationship may therefore give rise to potential confiicts of interests should the interests of the two
companies in relation to such lease agreements not be aligned;

o Furthermore, both Jacqueling Briffa and Alan Frendo Janes are officers of Alf Mizzi & Sons Lid (C
203) and MMGH Ltd (C 343) respectively, and each of Andrew Ganado and Christian Ganado are
officers and shareholders of Lidsdale (OC-638). Each of these companles are shareholders of
Melite Retail Limited {C 74224), the parent company of the Melite Group. Potential conflicts may
therefore arise between the interests of the Company and the Melite Finance Group on the cne
hand, and those of the shareholders of Melite Retail Limited on the other;

e In view of the lender-borrower relationship which exists between the Company and Melite
Properties S.r.|, thers may be situations which could give rise to conflicts between the potentially
diverging interests of both companies, In these situations, the directars shall act in accordance with
the majority decision of those directors who would not have a conflict in the situation and in line with
the advice of outside legal counsel.
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Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance - continued

Principle 12: Corporate Sacial Responsibility

The directors seek to promote the adherence by management to accepted principles of corporate social
responsibility in its management of the Melite Finance Group.

Non-compliance with the Code

The directors believe that good corporate governance is a function of a mix of chacks and balances that
best suit the Company and its business. Accordingly, whilst there are best practices that can be of general
application, the structures that may be required within the context of larger companies are not necessarily
and objectively the structures for companies whose size and/or business dictate otherwise. It is in this
context that the directors have adopted a corporate governance framework within the Company that is
designed to better suit the Company, its business, scale, and complexity, whilst ensuring proper checks
and balances.

Taking the above into account and considering that the Code is not mandatory and that the provisions
thereof may be departed from provided that reasonable and justifiable circumstances exist and are
adequately explained, the directors set out below the Code Provisions with which the Company does not
comply and what are, in its view, a reasonable and justifiable basis for such departure from the
recommendations set out in the Code relating to the composition of the Board.

Principle 4: Succession Although the Executive Director of the Company, is in his role as
Policy for the Board (Code Executive Director of Melite Properties S.ri., Is responsible for the
provision 4.2.7) recruitment and appointment of senior management, the Company has

' not established a formal succession plan. '

Principle 7: Evaluation of the The Board has not appointed a committee for the purpose of
Board’s Performance (Code  undertaking an evaluation of the Board's performance in accordance
provision 7.1) with the requirements of Code Provision 7.1.

The Board believes that the size of the Company and the Board itself
does not warrant the establishment of a committee specifically for the
purpose of carrying out a performance evaluation of Its role. Whilst the
raquirement under Code Provision 7.1 might be useful in the context
of larger companies having a more complex set-up and a larger Board,
the size of the Company's Board s such that it should enable it to
evaluate its own performance without the requirement of setting up an
ad-hoc committee for this purpose. The Board shall retain this matter
under review over the coming year.
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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance - continued

Non-compliance with the Code - continued

Principle 8A; Remuneration
Committee {Code provision
8.A.1) and Nominations
Commiittee (Code provision
8.B.1)

Principle 9: Relations with
shareholders and the market
{Code provision 8.3)

Principle 9: Relations with
shareholders and the market
(Code provision 9.4)

Internal Controls

The Board has not established a Remuneration andfor Nominations
Commities.

The Board has formulated the view that the size, structure and
management of the Company are such that the establishment of an ad
hoe Remuneration Committee is not warranted, and the responsibility
for the establishment, review and implementation of the Company's
remuneration policies has been retained within the remit of the Board
itself. In particular, the Board notes that the current remuneration policy
of the Company comprises purely fixed-rate remunesration, with no
entitement to any performance-based remuneration, or any
entittement to share options, refirement pension benefits or other
benefits.

Furthermore, the Board believes that the formal and transparent
procedure for the nomination and appointment of directors contained
in the Arlicles of Association is commensurate to the size and
operations of the Company, and does not consider the requirement to
establish an ad hoc Nominations Committee to be necessary for the
Company. : :

There are no formal procedures in place within the Company for the
resolution of conflicts between minority and controlling shareholders,
nor do the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
contemplate any mechanism for arbitration in these instances.

The Company does not have a formal policy in place to allow minority
shareholders to present an issue to the Board. In practice, however,
the open channel of communication between the Company and
minority shareholders via the office of the company secretary and the
Chairman is such that any Issue that may merit bringing o the attention
of the Board may be transmitted via the company secretary or the
Chairman, who is in attendance at all meetings of the Board of
Directors.

The key features of the Company's systems of Internal controls are as follows:

The Board is responsible for the Company's system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness,
Such a system is designed to achieve business objectives and to manage rather than to eliminate the risk
of fallure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable assurance against material error,

losses or fraud.

Authority to manage the Company's subsidiary is delegated to the executive director within the limits set by
the Board of Directors and the directors of Melite Properties S.r.l. The executive director is responsible to
control, report, monitor and assess risks and their financlal Implications, and report same to the said boards,
and to take timely corrective actions where necessary.
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

Internal Controls - continued

The Board also approves, after review and recommendation by the Audit Committee, the transfer of funds
and other amounts payable to companies within the same group, and ensures that these are subject to
terms and conditions which are on an arm’s length basis.

Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The AGM is the highest decision-making body of the Company.

All shareholders registered in the shareholders’ register at the relevant registration record date, have the
right to participate in the AGM and to vote thereat. A shareholder who cannot participate in at the AGM can

be represented by proxy.

A general meeting is deemed to have been duly convened if at least twenty-one (21) days' notice is given
in writing to all persons entitled to receive such notice, which must specify the place, the day and the hour
of the meeting, and in case of special business, the general nature of that business, and shall be
accompanied by a statement regarding the effect and scope of any proposed resolution In respect of such
special business. The notice period may be reduced to fourteen (14) days if certain conditions are satisfied.
The quorum of shareholders required is not less than 51% of the nominal value of the issued shares entitled

to attend and vote at the meeting.

The agenda of the AGM will comprise of the ordinary business of the AGM, covering the presentation and
approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements, the declaration of dividends, election of directors
and the approval of their remuneration, the appointment of the auditors and the authorisation of the directors
to set the auditors’ fees, together with any special business specifled in the notice calling the AGM.

Extraordinary general meetings (EGMs)
The directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting whenever they think fit. In addition, any

member/s of the Company holding at least ten per cent (10%) of the equity securities of the Company
conferring a right to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, may convene an extraordinary
general meeting. During the year under review, the Company held one EGM, on 17 September 2020, in
order for the Company’s shareholders to consider, as required in terms of Article 104 of the Companies'
Act (Cap.386 of the Laws of Malta), whether any, and if so, what steps should be taken by the Company
where, as resulted from interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial period ended 30 June 2020 (published on 31 August 2020), the net assets of the Company are
half or less of its called-up issued share capital. The shareholders of the Company were invited to consider
and if thought fit ratify the position adopted in a meeting with the Board of Directors held on 27 August 2020,
ahead of the above mentioned approval and publication of the Company's interim unaudited financial
stateme e-conglusions reached in the said meeting were ratified at the said EGM.

Signed on behalf of the/Board of Directors on 30 April 2021 by:

——

Stanley Portelli
Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors Director
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion:

e The Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) give a true and fair view of the Group and the Parent Company’s financial position of
Melite Finance p.l.c. as at 31 December 2020, and of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the EU; and

e The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese
Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee.
What we have audited
Melite Finance p.l.c.’s financial statements, set out on pages 30 to 67, comprise:

e the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

e the Consolidated and Parent Company income statements and statements of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the International Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in
terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these Codes.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services that we have provided to the
parent company and its subsidiary are in accordance with the applicable law and regulations in Malta
and that we have not provided non-audit services that are prohibited under Article 18A of the
Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281).

The non-audit services that we have provided to the parent company, in the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020, are disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1.1.1 to the financial statements which discusses the impact of COVID-19 on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern is critically dependent on the prospects and timing of the recovery of the retail sector in Ttaly,
and its ability to identify, and retain, tenants for its properties while, at the same time, addressing short
and medium term funding needs following the impact of the pandemic on the Group’s balance sheet and
cashflows. These conditions, along with other matters explained in note 1.1.1 to the financial statements,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our audit approach

Overview
e Overall group materiality: €221,757, which represents 1% of
Materiality total assets.
sf;;}‘,fg e The audit carried out by the group engagement team covered

the parent company and its subsidiary.

e TFair valuation of right of use assets

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors
made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits,
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement

due to fraud.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated
financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out in the
table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall group materiality €221,757

How we determined it 1% of total assets

Rationale for the We chose total assets as the benchmark because, in our view, it is

materiality benchmark an appropriate measure for this type of entity. We chose 1% which

applied is within the range of materiality thresholds that we consider
acceptable.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our
audit above €11,000 as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related
to going concern section, we have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report:
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Independent a lldl-fO?',S reporl‘ - continued

To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Key audit matter
Fair valuation of right of use assets

The Group’s right of use assets include property
rights attached to the leasehold properties
(Note 4).

There is an active market for the transfer of
property rights attached to leases of retail
outlets located in Italy, whereby the current
holders transfer their residual rights to the
retail outlet to other parties for a consideration.
The consideration paid typically reflects the
differential between the current market rental
rate for an outlet and the rental rate stipulated
in the lease agreement with the landlord.

The directors obtained an assessment of the
current market value of the property rights
attached to its lease agreements from a
specialised real estate valuer based in Italy.
These valuations were used as a basis for the
initial transfer of the property rights from
Melite Italia S.r.] to Melite Properties S.r.l. The
valuations were carried out by reference to the
current average rental value per sqm (valore
locativo mg/anno) for each outlet, which
reflects external market factors including the
supply and demand for retail outlets in a
particular location. In this respect, the valuers
made reference to data derived from recent
comparable market transactions that would
have occurred in the same street where each
property is located.

For the purposes of the current year financial
statements, the directors have requested the
valuer to update the valuation for the same
properties based on the market conditions as at
31 December 2020. The valuations are based on
the same methodology assumed in the previous
valuations used for the purposes of the initial
transfer.

We agreed the property information in the valuation to
the underlying property records held by the company.

We understood the methodology underlying the
valuations and confirmed, via discussion with the
valuers, that the valuation approach adopted was
suitable for the purpose of valuing these type of

property rights.

We compared the values as at 31 December 2020 to the
valuations underlying the initial transfer of the
property rights from Melite Italia S.r.l to Melite
Properties S.r.]. We identified and followed up on the
principal movements in relation to the original
valuations.

We held meetings with the directors and the audit
committee on the period-end valuations and found
that they were able to provide explanations and refer
to appropriate supporting evidence.

In addition, we evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in Notes 3 and 4 to the financial
statements, including those regarding the key
assumptions.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Valuations are performed annually using
projected rental streams and the residual value
of the property following lapse of the rental
period, taking into consideration also the
location of the property. As explained in Note 3
to the financial statements, the most significant
judgements and estimates affecting the
valuations include projected rental streams, the
residual value of the property and the current
market rate for the leasing of outlets in the
location of the outlet being valued.

The existence of significant estimates referred
to previously could result in material
misstatement, which is why we have given
specific focus and attention to this area.

We have no key audit matters to report with respect to our audit of the parent company financial statements.

How we tailored our group audit scope

The Group is composed of 2 components: Melite Finance p.l.c. (the parent company) and its wholly owned
subsidiary. We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

The group audit team performed all of this work by applying the overall Group materiality, together with
additional procedures performed on the consolidation. This gave us sufficient appropriate audit evidence
for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
report and the Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance (but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon except as explicitly stated within the Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.
386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s internal control.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Parent Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Parent
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 contains other areas required by
legislation or regulation on which we are required to report. The Directors are responsible for these other
areas.

The table below sets out these areas presented within the Annual Report, our related responsibilities and
reporting, in addition to our responsibilities and reporting reflected in the Other information section of our
report. Except as outlined in the table, we have not provided an audit opinion or any form of assurance.

Our responsibilities

Area of the Annual Our reporting
Report and

Consolidated

Financial Statements

2020 and the related

Directors’

responsibilities

In our opinion:

Directors’ report
(on pages 1to 7)

The Maltese Companies
Act (Cap. 386) requires
the directors to prepare a
Directors’ report, which
includes the contents
required by Article 177 of
the Act and the Sixth
Schedule to the Act.

We are required to consider
whether the information given in
the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the
financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

We are also required to express
an opinion as to whether the
Directors’ report has been
prepared in accordance with the
applicable legal requirements.

e the information given in
the Directors’ report for
the financial year for
which the financial
statements are prepared is
consistent with the
financial statements; and

o the Directors’ report has
been prepared in
accordance with the
Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386).
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Area of the Annual
Report and Consolidated
Financial Statements
2020 and the related
Directors’
responsibilities

Corporate Governance -
Statement of Compliance

(on pages 8 to 19)

The Listing Rules issued by
the Malta Listing Authority
require the directors to
prepare and include in the
Annual Report a Statement of
Compliance with the Code of
Principles of Good Corporate
Governance within Appendix
5.1 to Chapter 5 of the Listing
Rules. The Statement’s
required minimum contents
are determined by reference
to Listing Rule 5.97. The
Statement provides
explanations as to how the
Company has complied with
the provisions of the Code,
presenting the extent to
which the Company has
adopted the Code and the
effective measures that the
Board has taken to ensure
compliance throughout the
accounting period with those
Principles.

Our responsibilities

In addition, we are required to state
whether, in the light of the
knowledge and understanding of the
Company and its environment
obtained in the course of our audit,
we have identified any material
misstatements in the Directors’
report, and if so to give an indication
of the nature of any such
misstatements.

We are required to report on the
Statement of Compliance by
expressing an opinion as to whether,
in light of the knowledge and
understanding of the Company and
its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have
identified any material
misstatements with respect to the
information referred to in Listing
Rules 5.97.4 and 5.97.5, giving an
indication of the nature of any such
misstatements.

We are also required to assess
whether the Statement of
Compliance includes all the other
information required to be presented
as per Listing Rule 5.97.

We are not required to, and we do
not, consider whether the Board’s
statements on internal control
included in the Statement of
Compliance cover all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s
corporate governance procedures or
its risk and control procedures.

Our reporting

We have nothing to report
to you in respect of the
other responsibilities, as
explicitly stated within the
Other information
section.

In our opinion, the
Statement of Compliance
has been properly prepared
in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing
Rules issued by the Malta
Listing Authority.

We have nothing to report
to you in respect of the
other responsibilities, as
explicitly stated within the
Other information section.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Area of the Annual Our responsibilities Our reporting
Report and Consolidated
Financial Statements

2020 and the related
Directors’
responsibilities

Other matters on which we  We have nothing to report to
are required to report by you in respect of these
exception responsibilities.

We also have responsibilities
under the Maltese Companies
Act (Cap. 386) to report to you
if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records
have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our
audit have not been received
from branches not visited by
us.

e the financial statements are
not in agreement with the
accounting records and
returns.

e we have not received all the
information and
explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and
belief, we require for our
audit.

We also have responsibilities
under the Listing Rules to
review the statement made by
the directors that the business is
a going concern together with
supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary.

28



pwe

Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Melite Finance p.l.c.

Other matter — use of this report

Our report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Parent Company’s
shareholders as a body in accordance with Article 179 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior written consent.

Appointment

We were first appointed as auditors of the Company on 22 August 2019. Our appointment has been
renewed annually by shareholder resolution representing a total period of uninterrupted engagement
appointment of 2 years.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
78, Mill Street

Zone 5, Central Business District
Qormi

Malta

/ W
avid’Valenzia
Partner

30 April 2021
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Righi-of-use assets

Property, plant and eguipment

Investment in subsidiary

Equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Loans receivable

Deferred tax asset

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

.
mm"\l o O I

As at 31 December

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
€ € € €
19,245,756 24,778,967 - -
230,090 418,770 - -
- - 5005775 7,504,773
563,972 670,065 - -
- - 6,505,626 5,930,000
412,169 213,321 - -
20,451,987 26,081,123 11,511,401 13,434,773
1,183,306 1,899,807 710,526 183,512
540,381 602,194 239,415 210,488
1,723,687 2,502,001 949,941 394,000
22,175,674 28,583,124 12,461,342 13,828,773
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of financial position - continued

As at 31 December

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Notes € € € €
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 11 5,874,406 5,874,406 5,874,406 5,874,406
Capital contribution 12 637,560 - 637,560 -
Fair value reserve 82,826 82,826 - -
Retained earnings (5,270,775) (1,035424) (3,816,958) (1,113,197)
Total equity 1,324,017 4,921,808 2,695,008 4,761,209
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 14 9,914,997 8,972,097 9,452,557 8,972,097
Lease liabilities 15 8,666,452 12,320,031 - -
Total non-current liabilities 18,581,449 21,292,128 9,452,557 8,972,097
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 1,396,690 1,624,392 - -
Trade and other payables 16 873,518 581,225 313,777 87,897
Current tax liabilities - 163,571 - 7,570
Total current liabllities 2,270,208 2,369,188 313,777 95,467
Total liabilities 20,851,657 23,661,316 9,766,334 9,067,564
Total equity and liabilities 22,175,674 28,583,124 12,461,342 13,828,773

The notes on pages 36 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 67 were authorised for issue by the board on 30 April
2021 and'were signed on its behalf by:

( _ gl
"~ Pgul M&oleca Stanley Portelli
Chairman Director
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Staternents - 31 December 2020

Income statements
Group Company
Period from Period from
Year 27 September Year 27 September
ended 201810 ended 201810
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2018
Notes € € € €
Revenue 17 1,569,253 4,693,812 - -
Cost of sales 18 {2,265,101)  (3,226,216) - -
Gross (loss)/profit (695,848) 1,467,596 - -
Administrative expenses 18 (1,883,800) (426,384) (273,071) (183,785)
Impairment on leasehold premia,
net of recovery 19 (1,026,118) (517,226) . -
Other income 9 9 - 170,000 315,000
Operating (loss)/profit (3,573,842) 523,986 {103,071) 131,235
Impairment of investment in
subsidiary ¢ - - {2,498,998) (1,119,8633)
Finance income 8 . - 372,396 422,018
Finance costs 20 (1,256,136)  (1,543,284) (481,658} (522,668)
Loss before tax {4,829,978)  (1,019,298) (2,711,331) (1,089,048)
Tax credit/(expense) 22 594,627 (16,126) - 7,870 (24,149)
Loss for the period (4,235,351)  (1,035,424) (2,703,761) (1,113,197}
Attributable to:
Owners of the company (4,235,351) (1,035,424) {2,703,761) {1,113,197)
Statements of comprehensive income
Group Company
Pericd from Period from
Year 27 Septamber Year 27 September
- ended 2018 to ended 2018 to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
Note € € € €
Loss for the period (4,235,351) (1,035,424) (2,703,761)  (1,113,197)
Revaluation gain on equity
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 7 82,826 - -
Total comprehensive income {4,235,351) {952,508)  (2,703,761) {1,113,197)
Attributable to: ‘
Owners of the company (4,235,351) (952,598) {2,703,761) {1,113,187)

The notes on pages 36 to 67 are an Integral part of these consolidated flnancial statements.
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Repert and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of changes in equity

Group
Share Capital Fairvalue  Retained
capital coniribution reserve  earnings Total
Notes € € € € €

Balance at 27 September 2018 - - - - -
Comprehensive income!

Loss fer the period - - - (1,035,424) (1,035,424)
QOther comprehensive income:
Revaluation gain on equity

instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income 7 - - §2,826 - 82,826
Total comprehensive income - - 82,826 (1,035,424) (952,598)
Transactions with owners
lssue of share capital 11 5,874,406 - - - 5,874,406
Balance at 31 December 2019 5,874,406 - 82,826 (1,035,424) 4,921,808
Balance at 1 January 2020 5,874,406 - 82,826 (1,035,424) 4,921,808
Comprehensive income:
Loss for the year - totai

comprehensive income - - - (4,235,351) {4,235,351)
Transactions with owners
Additional capital contribution 12 - 637,560 - - 637,560
Balance at 31 December 2020 5,874,406 637,560 82,826 (5,270,775) 1,324,017
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of changes in equity - continued

Company
Share Capital Retained
capital contribution earnings Total
Note € € € €
Balance at 27 September 2018 - - - -
Comprehensive income:
Loss for the period — total comprehensive
income - - {(1,113,187) (1,113,197)
Transactions with owners
Issue of share capital 11 5,874,406 - - 5,874,406
Balance at 31 December 2019 5,874,406 - (1,413,197) 4,764,209
Balance at 1 January 2020 5,874 406 - (1,113,197} 4,761,209
Comprehensive income:
Loss for the year ~ fotal comprehensive
income . - - (2,703,761) (2,703,761)
Transactions with owners
Additional capital contribution - 12 - 637,560 - 637,560
Balance at 31 December 2020 5,874,406 637,560 (3,816,958) 2,695,008

The notes on pages 36 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financlal Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Finance costs
Finance income

" Tax paid

Net cash generated from/{used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of right of use assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of subsidiary

Loans to subsidiary

Purchase of equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive
Income

Proceeds from sale of equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Net cash generated from/(used in)
[nvesting activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from the Issuance of ordinary
shares
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds
Payments for bond issue costs
Principal elements of lease payments
Proceeds from capital contribution
Proceeds from loans

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year/period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year/period

Noles

23
B

QG

1

14
15

14

10

10

Group Company
Period from Period from
Year 27 September Year 27 September
ended 31 2018to ended 31 2018 to
December 31 December December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
680,514 5,951,234 (449,205) 5,660,026
{450,198) (448,625) {450,198) (486,012)
" - 372,396 422,018
232,208 (65,876) - (16,578)
462,524 5,436,733 (527,007) 5,579,454
(59,901)  (10,307,020) . -
- (592,683) - -
. - - (8,624,4086)
- - (575,628)  (5,930,000)
(89,683) (587,239) - -
198,776 - - -
46,192 (11,486,942) (575,626) (1 4,554,406)
- 250,000 - 250,000
- 9,250,000 - 9,250,000
- (314,560) - (314,560)
{2,164,498) {(2,713,011) - -
637,560 - 637,560 -
911,440 - 449,000 -
{615,498} 6,472,429 1,086,560 9,185,440
(106,782) 422,220 (16,073) 210,488
422,220 - 210,488 -
315,438 422,220 194,415 210,488

The notes on pages 36 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MELITE FINANCE P.L.C.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financlal Statements - 31 December 2020

Notes to the financial statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and with the requirements
of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386). The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the fair valuation of equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires directors to exercise their judgment In the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies (see Note 3 — Critical accounting estimates and
judgments}). ‘

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2020

In 2020, the company adopted new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are mandatory for the company’s accounting year beginning on 1 January 2020. The adoption
of these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU did not resuii in substantial
changes to the company's accounting policies, not impacting the company's financial performance
and position. ' :

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
by the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the
company's accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2020. The company has not early adopted
these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the company's Direciors are
of the opinion that there are no requirements that will have a possible significant impact on the
company'’s financial statements In the period of initial application.

1.1.1 Assessment of going concern assumption

The Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are significantly impacted by
impairment charges amounting to €1.3 million in respect of receivables from Melite Italia S.r.l. (a
sister company of Melite Finance p.l.c.), in view of the election of the debtor's Board of Directors to
commence a process of voluntary administration. The results are also impacted by impairment
charges amounting to €1.2 million attributable to leasehold premia principally in respect of properties
leased out to Melite ltalia s.r.l. (note 3). In view of the subsidiary's losses referred to above, the parent
company has reflected in its standalone financlal information an impairment charge of €2.5 million on
the carrying amount of the investment in subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group Is in a net current liability position of €710,092 (2019: current
asset position of €132,813) as a result of the recognition of lease liabilities on the Group’s rental
commitrments, in accordance with IFRS 18, with no corresponding asset recognised for the related
rental Income streams.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continuad
1.1.1 Assessment of going concern assumption - continued

Both the retail landscape and the commercial real estate landscape in Northern italy, where the vast
majority of the Stores are located, have been subjected to significant and unprecedented disruption
as a result of the pandemic. Following the outbreak of COVID-19 in Italy, particularly in Northern italy
where most of the leases held by Meilte Properties are situated, all retail outlets in italy were shut
with effect from 10 March 2020. Retail cutlets were permitted to re-open as from 18 May 2020 but
virtually all of Melite Properties’ tenants have elected not to re-open for the major part of the year, in
common with many retail outlets across ltaly. Further to a spike in the number of positive COVID-19
cases recorded across [taly over the latter months of 2020, the ltalian government re-introduced a
series of restrictive measures as from early November. Such measures subsisted throughout the
month of December and are only currently being gradually relaxed in parts of ltaly. During this period,
retail activity was intermittent across most regions of ltaly, particularly in the reglons in which Melite
Properties’ tenants operate. The current outlook for the retail segment is also rather bleak due to the
devastating effect that COVID-19 has had on the Italian economy. Demand has been very weak for
several months and is expected to remain as such possibly up to mid to late 2021.

Melite Properties’ tenants, all of which operate in the retail sector, have likewise been severely
negatively affected, resulting in such tenants being unable to maintain rental payment obligations at
the rates prevailing before the emergence of the pandemic. Melite Properties' management remains
in constant contact with both its landlords and tenants with respect to possible revisions of existing
payment terms in consequence of the closure of outlets resulting from the lockdown implemented
across ltaly. The Company has so far maintained payments of rent fo landlords (as reduced, where
possible, further to negotiations conducted by management) and remains in contact with them as this
Is consldered essential for the purpose of the safeguarding of the company's property rights over the -
Stores it has retained andfor plans on retaining.

Melite Italia S.r.I ("Melite ltalia"}, a sister company of Melite Finance p.lLc. that was the principal tenant
of the properties held by Melite Properties, has been adversely affected by the developments in 2020.
The company had already been registering a marked reduction in turnover and margins on a store
by store basis, which primarily reflected difficultles being faced by its primary franchise Accessorize,
Melite ltalia was in the process of implementing a plan to restructure its operations and its shareholder
{Melite Retail Limited) had agreed to inject the funding required to finance this turnaround plan. The
onset of COVID-18 has precipitated matters and significantly affected the turnaround plan and its
related funding requirement, which led the board of directors of Melite ltalia to reconsider the viability
of this operation. In this context, the board of directors of Melite ltalia has elected to commence a
process of voluntary administration. This process included, infer alia, the termination of the 21 sub-
lease agreements that it held at that time with Melite Properties. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had receivables from Melite Italia amounting to €1,721,595, arising from rent payable which was
receivable three months in arrears in line with the rental agreements. The fact that Melite ltalia has
elected to commence a process of voluntary administration, has triggered a doubt on the
recoverability of this balance, requiring an impairment provision of €1.3 million.

Melite ltalia had informed Melite Properties of the intention to enter into a restructuring of its business
and debts In terms of a procedure available in terms of italian law. Accordingly, sourcing aiternative
tenants for the Stores which were operated by Melite Italia remained a key priority for the Company
and Melite Properties (together the “Melite Finance Group”), On the advice of commercial real estate
specialists, the Company entered into profit-sharing agreements with Melite ltalia as the likelihood of
success In sourcing new tenants was deemed as greater should the stores be operational and
stocked, rather than closed. This arrangement remained in place through 2020 and the initial months
of 2021 other than those periods when further COVID-19 waves in Italy led to further lockdown
decrees and the shops remaining shut,
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued '
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

1.1.1 Assessment of going concern assumption - continued
Restructuring plan

Following the onset of COVID-19 and the decision by Melite ltalia to enter into voluntary
administration, a restructuring plan was agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company that
included the rescission of nine out of the twenty six stores held by Melite Properties while frying to
find new tenants for the remaining stores. Qut of the total of nine leases identified for rescinding by
the Board of Directars, Melite Properties has rescinded four stores during the year ended 31

December 2020 and is In the process of rescinding another two stores in 2021. This is being effected

in order to channel all available cash towards safeguarding what the Board of Directors of Melite
Properties believe to be the more valuable leases that are essential to secure the fulfilment of its
obligations towards the Company and, in turn, the Mellte Finance Group’s long term survival. The
leases that were rescinded relate to those stores (such as stores located within commercial centres)
which, based on advice from real estate speclalists, were expected to take longer to sub-let. Although.
the rescission of these leases may, in terms of the relevant contracts, be subject to early termination

penalties, the Board of Directors of Melite Properties, having sought legal advice from the company's
ltalian legal advisors, have been advised that it is unlikely that a claim for payment of such penalties
would be upheld by a court of law, given the context in which the leases are being terminated.

Following the rescission of these contracts, Melite Properties has been left with a total of twenty
stores (the “Retained Stores™), with a combined valuation as at 31 December 2020 of €8.7 million.
Notwithstanding the challenging economic climate and rapidly evolving conditions, management has
so far concluded or retained agreements for the sub-letting of six of these stores to third party
operators. Furthermore, in April 2021, management have concluded negotiations and have accepted
an irrevocable offer from a third party retail operator which has secured the sub-letting of another
nine stores as from 1 June 2021 for a period of twenty four months. Management are also in
discusslons for the sub-letfing of an additional two stores with the first few months being subjectto a
profit-sharing agreement. The conclusion of these negotiations and the possible conclusion of the
latter mentioned agreements, leaves the Company with three stores to be sub-let to third partles or
rescinded, and for which management have already received offers for two of these properties and
negotiations are expected to commeance soon.

Financing

The process of identifying new tenants requires time, not least due to the complicated trading
conditions in view of the adverse efiect of COVID-19 on the retail sector in ltaly. COVID-19 has
dragged on beyond initial expectations and Its Impact on the retall sector in italy has been far more
significant than anticipated. In the intervening period until Melite Propertles sources new tenants for
its properties, and in order to protect its assets, it needed to finance the payment of rent duse to its
landlords. The continued and regular payment of rent to landlords is imperative to ensure that Melite
Properties does not have to forfeit the property rights that it holds. These property rights are the
principal asset held by this business and represent the underlying assets secured through the share
pledge granted in favour of the Security Trustee as security in favour of the holders of the Bonds (the
“hondholders”). Without these property rights, the Melite Finance Group will have no assets to
generate the funds required to service interest and eventually redeem the Bonds.

Melite Finance is owned entirely by Melite Retail Limited (Melite Retail). The ultimate shareholders
of Melite Retail have injected an amount of €1.1million, which based on the restructuring plan, was
used to finance rental payments to the landlords of the Retained Stores in the intervening period until
such time as Melite Properties identified new tenants.
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1.1 Basis of preparation - continued
1.1.1 Assessment of going concern assumption - continued

The agreed €1, 1million financing was injected during 2020 through two instruments as follows:

s €0.63 million in the form of a capital contribution into Melite Finance by Alf.Mizzi & Sons Lid,
MMGH Lid and Daystar Holdings Ltd, that will be repayable at the option of the Company after the
redemption of the Bonds; and

» €0.47 million in the form of an interest free loan by Andrew Ganado Limited and by GAN Ltd
at the level of Melite Properties that will be repayable through a bullet repayment due after five years.

An additional undertaking totalling €0.35 million has been provided by the shareholders, subject to
bondholder approval of certain changes to terms of the band. Alf, Mizzi & Sons Ltd, MMGH Ltd and
Daystar Holdings Ltd have since waived the conditionality insofar as relates to their combined share
of €0.2 million. The balance of the €0.15 million support by Andrew Ganado Ltd and by GAN Ltd
remains conditional on bondhoider approval.

As part of the fulfilment of the resfructuring plan set out during the year, the Board has also been
successful in obtaining a ioan amounting to €0.449 million from the Malta Development Bank under
the COVID Guarantee Scheme which enabled the Company to service, in full, the Bond interest
payment which was due in November 2020.

The recent agreemenis reached with new tenants together with the funding made available has
provided relief to the Melite Finance Group and the underlying business in this unprecedented, and
extremely difficult and uncertain time, allowing the Board of Directors of the Company, and Melite
Properties’ management, to forge a plan which would see the Melite Finance Group retain as much
as possible of the value of the property rights it holds and on which the future servicing and repayment
of the Bonds is ultimately dependent,

Current cash flow projections indicate a manageable shortfall in the coming 12 months, but a shortfall
of around €0.6 million is indicated for the financial year ending 31 December 2022. The position
outlined in the preceding paragraphs allows the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into
discussions with the bondholders in relation to the revision of certain terms of the bond in issue,
reflacting the economic realities that the Group has, and will, continue to face. In parallel, the Board
will discuss with the sharehclders further funding that could be made avallable. Should any of these
discussions be unsuccessful, the arrangements in piace should allow the Board time to seek
alternative sources of funding in the context of the cash flow projections to endeavour that adequate
capital levels and liguidity resources are maintained.

Based on the analysis referred to above, the directors continue to consider the going concern
assumption in the preparation of the Group's financial statements as appropriate as at the date of
authorisation for issue of the 2020 financial statements. However, the abave conditions surrounding
the retall sector in Italy, the impact of the pandemic on the operations and financial position of the
Group, and the tenancy risk that will remain, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty, which
may cast significant doubt on the ahility of the Group to continue as a going concern.
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1.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The
group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights fo, variable returns from its
Involverment with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases,

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations that
fall within the scope of IFRS 3. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former cwners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or lability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
(identifiable net assets) in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any nen-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initiaily measured as the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. If this is less than the fair
value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Upon consolidation, inter~-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any refained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
cost method of accounting, i.e. at cost less impairment. Cost includes directly attributable costs of
the investment. Provisions are recorded where, in the opinion of the directors, there is an impairment
in value, Where there has been an Impairment in the value of an investment, it is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the diminution is identified. The results of subsidiaries are reflected
in the Company's separate financial statements only to the extent of dividends receivable. On
disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
is charged or credited to profit or loss.
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1.3 Segment reporting

The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the information that internally is
provided to the Board of Directors, which is the Group's chief operating decislon-maker in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segments’.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.
An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors io make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance executing
the function of the chief operating decision-maker. The board of directors considers the Group to be
made up of one operating segment.

1.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

tems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in euro which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates .of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Propertly, plant and equipment comprising furniture, fittings and fixtures Is stated at historical cost
less deprecfiation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are Incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of the assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

%

Fixtures, furniture and fittings 12-15

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assel's
carrying amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment - continued

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘operating expenses'’ in the statement of
comprehensive income.

1.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes In circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value In
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period. '

1.7 Financial assets

1.7.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and
+ those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity Instruments that are not held-for-trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

1.7.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
company has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

1.7.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, In the case of a
financlal asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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1.7 Financial assets - continued
1.7.3 Measurement - continued

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

» FVOCI Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through QOCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and forelgn exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss, When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl Is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/{losses).

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance Income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as a separate line item In the statement of profit or loss,

Debt instrumentis - continued

+ FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value, Where the Group's
management has elected fo present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised In other gains/({losses) in profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses {and reversal of impairment losses) on equity Investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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1.7 Flnancial assets - continued
1.7.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applled depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the regeivables.

1.8 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables comprise amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
parformed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected In one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are presented as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit loss allowances (Note 1.7.3).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against profit or loss. Impairment of financial assets is described in Note 1.7.4
above.

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value. In the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

1.10 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1.11 Financial liahilities

The Group recognises a financial liability in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group's financial liabilities are classified as
financial liabilitles which are not at fair value through profit or loss (classifled as ‘Other liabilities')
under IFRS 9. Finangcial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are recognised inltially at fair
value, being the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or the issue of the financial liability. These liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The Group derecognises a financial liability from its statement of
financlal position when the obligation specified in the contract or arrangement is discharged, is
cancelled or expires.
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1.12 Boerrowings

Borrowings are recognised Initially at the fair value of proceeds received, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right io defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Issue costs incurred in connection with the issue of the bonds include professional fees, printing,
listing, registration, underwriting, management fees, selling costs and other miscellaneous costs.

1.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables comprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised Initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.14 Offsetting financial Instruments

Financial assets and ligbllities are offset and the net amount reborted in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there Is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.-

1.15 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The Increase in the provision due to passage of time Is
recognised as interest expense.

1.16 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Deferred tax Is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arlsing between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and thelr carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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1.16 Current and deferred fax - continued

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it Is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

1.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economlic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the group's activities as described below.

{a) Sales of services

Revenue from services is generally recognised in the period the services are provided, based on the
services performed to date as a percentage of the total services to be performed. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction under the percentage
of completion method.

{a) Renfal income

Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on & straight-ling basis over the term of the lease.

{¢} Interest income

Interest income is recognised for all interest-bearing instruments using the effective interest method.
1.18 Leases

The Group is the lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Leases are recognised as a right of use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset Is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabillties arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:
« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
+ varlable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, Initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
+ amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
+ the exerclse price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and
« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exerclsing
that option.
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1.18 Leases - continued
The Group is the lessee - continued

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the respective lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtaln an asset of similar value to the right of use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental barrowing rate, the Group:
+ where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;
* uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, where thers is no third party financing; and
+ makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
= the amount of the inltial measurement of lease liability;
» any lease payments made at or before the commencement date Iess any lease incentives
recelived; and
* any initial direct costs,

Initial direct costs include premia paid on leasehold property. Premium paid on leasehold property
are shown at historical cost. Premium paid on outlets held under a contratio di locazione have an
indefinite useful life. Therefore, such premia are not depreciated but are subject to an annual
impairment test at the end of each financial year (Note 1.7). Premium paid on cutlets held under a
contratfo d’affitto df ramo d'azienda are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term of
the leasehold property, net of any residual value,

Right of use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right of use asset Is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and ail leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and clroumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option, Extension
options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended. Periods
after termination options are included in the lease term unless it is reasonably certain that the lease

will be terminated.
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1.18 Leases - continued

The Group is the lessee - continued

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

+ If there are significant penalties fo terminate (or not extend), the Group is typically reasonably
certain fo extend (or not terminate);

+ Ifany leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group
is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate);

« Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the leased asset. :

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group
becomes obliged to exercise {or not exercise) It. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only
revised if a significant event or a significant change In circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

The Group is the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in right of use assets in the statement of
financial position and are accounted for as per above. Rental income from operating leases Is
recognised in profit or Joss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Group did not need to
make any adjusiments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of the adoption of the
new leasing standard.

1.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are Incurred for the purpose of acquiring or constructing qualifying property,
plant and equipment are capitalised as part of its cost. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarlly
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are
capitalised while acquisition or construction s actively underway, during the perlod of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs Is
ceased once the asset is substantially ready for their intended use or sale and is suspended if the
development of the asset is suspended. All other borrowing costs are expensed.

Barrowing costs are recognised for all interest-bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method. Interest costs include the effect of amortising any difference between initial
net proceeds and redemption value in respect of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings.

1,20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

Financlal risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group did not make
use of derivative financial instrumenis to hedge its risk exposures during the current and preceding
financial years.
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2.1 Financial risk factors - continuad

The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering risks refarred
to above and specific areas such as investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is not exposed to foreign exchange risk because its principal assets and fabilities, are
denominated in euro. The Group's Interest income, interest expense and other operating expenses
are also denominated in eurc. Accordingly, a sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk disclosing
how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changes in foreign exchange rates that
were reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period is not deemed necessary.

(i) Price risk

As at 31 December 2020, the group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments
held by the group amounting to €563,972 (2019: €670,065) and classified in the statement of inancial

- position as_equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The directors

manage this risk by reviewing on a regular basis investment and market performance.

The sensitivity analysis for equity risk illustrates how changes in fair value of equity securities will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific
to the individual equity issuer, or factors affecting all similar equity securities traded in the market. As
at 31 December 2020, should the equity prices increasefdecrease by 10%, with all other variables
held constant, the impact on equity would be €58,397 (2019: €67,007).

{iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risks assoclated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
the market interest rates on its financing pesition and cash flows. As at the reporting date, the
Company has fixed rate interest-bearing assets comprising of amounts loaned to subsidiary.
Accordingly, its revenue and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

As at the statement of financial position date, the Group's exposure to changes in interest rates on
bank accounts held with financial institutions and on interest bearing liabilities was limited as the
Group is predominantly subject to fixed interest rates.

Based on the above, the board considers the potential Impact on profit or loss of a defined interest
rate shift that is reasonably possible at the reporting date to be immaterial.

*T‘I | i
1
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
fb) Creditrisk

Credit risk arises from loans recelvable from subsidiary, cash and cash equivalenis and credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in respect of the Group'’s
financial assets Is equivalent to their carrying amount, which is analysed as follows:

At 31 December

Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2019
€ € € €

Financial assets at amortised cost: -
Loan recelvable from subsidiary (Note 8} - - 6,505,626 5,930,000
Trade and other recesivables {Note 9) 979,867 1,717,576 706,526 177,556
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 540,381 602,184 239,415 210,488

1,520,248 2,319,770 7,451,567 6,318,044

The figures disclosed in the table above in respect of trade and other receivables exclude prepayments.

Loan receivable and trade and other receivables

The Company's loan receivable Is due from subsidiary undertaking. The Company monitors intra-
group credit exposures at Individual entity level on a regular basis and ensures timely performance of
these assets in the context of its overall guidity management.

The loss allowances for these financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company's management uses judgement in making these assumptions,
based on the counterparty's past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

As at year-end, based on the directors' assessments of these factors and the equity position of the
respective counterparty, no Impairment charge is considered necessary.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit [osses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The directors consider both historical analysis
and forward-looking information In determining any expscled credit loss. Trade receivables were
analysed to identify a history of default with its customers and expected payment trends and settlement
periods, Management estimates any risk of default to be minimal and the impact would thus be
immatertal.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(b} Credit risk - continued

Cash at bank

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. While cash and cash equivalents are also

subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified Impairment loss was insignificant.

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposure with external credit ratings
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
BRB+ o BBB- 307,156 397,896 6,190 6,190
Unrated : 233,225 204,298 233,225 204,298

540,381 602,194 239,415 210,488

{c) Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial liabilities, which comprise principally the bonds issued to the general public, leasa liabilities
and other payables (refer to Notes 14, 15 and 16 respectively). Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and liquid assets to ensure the availability of an adequate amount
of funding to meet the Group's obligations.

The Group's liquidity risk is managed actively by ensuring that cash inflows arising from expected
maturities of the Group’s advances to relafed parties effected out of the bond issue proceeds, together
with any related interest receivable, match the cash outflows in respect of the Group’s bond borrowings,
covering principal and interest payments, as referred to in Note 14 and reflected in the table below.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{¢) Liquidity risk - continued

The following table analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date, The amounts disclosed
in the tables below are the coniractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Group

Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

At 31 December
2020

Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

At 31 December
2019

Company

Borrowings
Trade payables

At 31 December
2020

Borrowings
Trade payables

" At 31 December
2019

Contractual cashflows

Carrying Within Between1 Between2 QOver
amount Total 1year and2years and 5 years 5 years
€ € € € €
9,914,997 13,903,840 448,625 549,025 2,109,515 10,796,675
10,063,142 11,159,434 1,328,964 1,461,612 4,070,313 4,298,545
873,518 833,766 833,766 - - -
20,851,657 25,897,040 2,611,355 2,010,637 6,179,828 15,095,220
8,972,097 13,287,625 448,625 448,826 1,345,875 11,044,500
13,944,423 15,636,817 1,921,617 1,868,982 5,305,674 6,540,544
581,225 526,010 526,010 - - -
23,497,745 29,450,452 2,896,252 2,317,607 6,651,549 17,585,044
Contractual cashflows

Carmrying Within  Between1 Between 2 Over
amount Total iyear and2years and?5 years 5 years

€ € € € €
0,452,557 13,441,400 448,626 549,026 1,647,075 10,796,675
313,777 274,025 274,025 - - -
9,766,334 13,715,425 722,650 549,025 1,647,075 10,796,675
8,972,097 13,287,625 448,625 448,625 1,345,875 11,044,500
87'897 50|511 501511 - - -
9,059,994 13,338,136 499,136 448,628 1,345,875 11,044,500

Contractual cashflows for Trade payables exclude accrued interest which is included in the
Borrowings' contractual cashflows.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order ta provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
to malntain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Structural borrowings include borrowings and lease liabilities, less cash and
cash equivalents, The gearing ratios at 31 December were as follows:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € €

Total borrowings (Note 14) 9,914,997 8,972,097 9,452,857 8,972,097
Total lease liabilities (Note 15) 10,063,142 13,944,423 - -
Less: Cash in hand and in bank (Note 10) (540,381) (602,194) (239,415) (210,488)
Net borrowings 19,437,758 22,314,326 9,213,142 8,761,609
Total equity 1,324,017 4,821,808 2,695,008 4,761,209
Total capital 20,761,775 27,236,134 11,908,150 13,522,818
Gearing : 93.6% 81.9% 77.4% 64.8%

2.3 Fair values of financial instruments-

At 31 December 2020 and 2019 the carrying amounts of cash at bank, receivables, payables,
accrued expenses and short-term borrowings reflected in the financial staterments are reasonable
estimates of fair value in view of the nature of these Instruments or the relatively short period of time
between the orlgination of the instruments and their expected realisation.

The fair values of the interest bearing loans receivable were not significantly different from their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period based on digscounted cash flows using market interest rates
prevailing at 31 Decemnber 2020 and 2019. The current market interest rates utilised for discounting
purposes, which were almost equivalent o the respective instruments’ contractual interest rates, are
deemed observable and accordingly these fair value estimates have been categorised as Level 2 within
the fair value measurement hlerarchy required by IFRS 7, ‘ Financial instrumenis: Disclosures'.
Information en the fair value of the Group's bonds issued fo the general public is disclosed in Note 14
to the financial statements. The fair value estimate in this respect is deemed Level 1 as it constitutes a
quoted price in an active market.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that Is, derived from prices) (level 2).

+ Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that Is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Financial risk management - continued
2.3 Fair values of financial instruments - continued

The following table presents the Group's assets that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2020
and 2019,

Group Level 1
2020 2019
€ €
At 31 December
Available-for-sale financial investments:
- Listed equity securities 563,972 670,065

Total financial assets at fair value 563,972 670,065

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price and has been
obtained directly from the custodian. These instruments are included in level 1.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. : :

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
present a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year. The Group’s management also makes judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, In the process of applying the entity's accounting policies that may have a significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

3.1 Fair valuation of right of use assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's right of use assets include leasehold premia amounting to
€9,301,894 (2019: €11,433,007). These premia are fair valued on the basis of professional advice,
given that such valuation requires the extensive use of judgement and estimates.

There is an active market for the transfer of property rights attached to leases of retail outlets located
in Italy, whereby the current holders transfer their residual rights to the retail outlet to other parties for
a consideration. The consideration paid typically reflects the differential between the current market
rental rate for an outlet and the rental rate stipulated in the lease agreement with the landlord.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments - continued
‘3.1 Fair valuation of right of use assets - continued

Valuations are performed annually using projected rental streams and the residual value of the
property following lapse of the rental period, taking into consideration also the location of the property.
The most significant judgements and estimates affecting the valuations include projected rental
streams, the residual value of the property and the current market rate for the leasing of outlets in the
location of the outlet being valued.

The directors obtained an assessment of the current market value of the property rights attached to
its lease agreements from a specialised real estate valuer based in Italy. These valuations were used
as a basis for the initial transfer of the property rights from Melite Italia S.r.| to Melite Properties S.r.).
The valuations were carried out by reference to the current average rental value per sqm (valore
locativo ma/anno) for each outlet, which reflects external market factors including the supply and
demand for retall outlets in a particular location. In this respect, the valuers made reference to data
derived from recent comparable market transactions that would have occurred in the same street
where each property is located.

For the purposes of the current year financial statements, the directors have requested the valuer to
update the valuation for the same property based on the market conditions as at 31 Decamber 2020,
The valuations are based on the same methodology assumed in the previous valuations used for the
purpases of the initial transfer.

Right of use assets

Right of use assets recognised during the course of the current financial year relates to leasehold
properties and premia paid on such properties. :

Group €
Year ended 31 December 2019

Additions 28,420,952
Termination of leasehold agreement (50,000)
Depreciation (2,838,638)
Impairment on leasehold premia (note 18) (760,046)
Depreciation released on termination of leasehold agreement 6,697
Net book amount 24,778,967
At 31 December 2019

Cost 28,370,952
Accumulated depreciation (2,831,939)
Provision for impairment on leasehold premia (760,048)
Net book amount 24,778,967
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Right of use assets - continued

Group
€
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening nét baok value 24,778,967
Additions 59,901
Termination of leaseheld agreement (3,488,963)
Depreciation (2,349,839)
Impairment on leasehold premia (note 18) (999,863)
Depreciation released on termination of leasehold agreement 1,245,553
Net book amount 19,245,756
At 31 December 2020
Cost 24,941,860
Accumulated depreclation (3,936,225)
Provislon for impairment on leasehold premia (1,759,909}
Net book amount 19,245,756
The income statemants show the following amounts relating to leases:
2020 2019
€ €
Depreciétion charge of right-of-use assefs 2,349,839 ;’2,838.636
Interest expense (included in finance cost) (Note 20) 774,478 1,020,616
Expense relating fo variable lease payments not included in lease
liabilities (included in administrative expenses) - 212,095

3,124,317 4,071,347

Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
furniture
and fittings Total
Group € €
Year ended 31 December 2019
Additions 502,683 592,683
Depreciation (173,913) (173,913)
Closing net book value 418,770 418,770
At 31 December 2019
Cost 592,683 592,683
Accumulated depreciation (173,913) (173,913)
Net book amount 418,770 418,770
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Property, plant and equipment -~ continued

Fixtures,
furniture

and fittings Total
Group € €
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book value 418,770 418,770
Disposals {232,579) (232,579)
Depreciation (73,535) {73,535)
Released of depreciation on disposals 117,434 117,434
Closing net book value 230,090 230,090
At 31 December 2020
Cost 360,104 360,104
Accumulated depreciation (130,014) (130,014)
Net book amount 230,090 230,090
Investment in subsidiary
Company 2020 2019

€ €

Year ended 31 December, _
Opening carrying amount 7,504,773 -
Additions - 8,624,408
Provision for impairment (2,498,998} (1.119,633)
Closing carrying amount 5,005,776 7,504,773
At 31 December
Cost 8,624,406 8,624,406
Provision for impairment (3.618,631) (1,119,633)
Closing carrying amount 5,005,775 7,504,773

The subsidiary at 31 December 2020 and 2019, whose results and financial position affected the
figures of the Group, is shown below:

. Percentage of
Registered office Class of shares held shares held
2020 2019
%o %
Melite Properties  Vittor Pisani 20, 20124, Milan,
S.r.l ltaly Ordinary shares 100 100
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Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group 2020 2019

€ €
Opening net book amount 670,065 -
Additions 89,683 587,239
Disposals (195,776) -
Fair value movement - 82,826
Closing net book amount 563,972 670,065

These financial assets are held as security on properties.

The Group's equity Investments, as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, consist of equity instruments in
listed foreign companies, namely Banca Popolare di Milano, Anima Sforzesco and Anima Alto
Potenziale Globale and Anima FO Trading. Accordingly, these equity investments are categorised
as Level 1 within the fair value measurement hierarchy required by IFRS 13. The change in the fair
value of these investments is recognised In other comprehensive income in a fair value reserve.

Loans receivable

Company 2020 2019
. € €

Non-current

Loans to subsidiary : . 6,505,626 5,930,000

The loans to subsidiary are subject to interest at a fixed interest rate of 6.1% per annum, are
unsecured and repayable by not later than 23 November 2028. The interest charged on the loan is
recognised in profit or loss and presented as finance income.

Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Current

Trade recejvables 146,923 19,659 - -
Amounts due from subsidlary - - 700,329 157,933
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaty 1,376 1,376 - -

Accrued income — fellow subsidiary, net
of provision 393,627 1,397,319 - -
Accrued income — parent 286,123 286,123 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 203,439 182,231 4,000 5,956
Other receivables and indirect taxation 151,818 13,099 6,197 19,623
1,183,306 1,899,807 710,526 183,512

Amounts due from subsidiary and fellow subsidiary are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. _

Amounts due from subsidiary include a management fee recognised in profit or loss and presented
as other income.
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10,

.

12,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € £
Cash at bank and in hand 540,381 602,194 239,415 210,488
Restricted cash (224,943) (179,974) (45,000) -
315,438 422,220 194,415 210,488

Cash and cash equivalents include €179,943 {2019: €179,974) and €45,000 (2019: Nil}, which are
held by Banca Intesa Sanpaolo and Lombard Bank Malta p.l.c respectively. These deposits are
subject to regulatory restrictions and are therefore not available for general use by the entities within
the Group.

Share capital

Group and Company

2020 2019
€ €
Authorised
10,000,000 ordinary shares of €1 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid
5,874,406 ordinary shares of €1 each 5,874,406 5,874,406

On 27 September 2018, the Company was incorporated with an issued share capital of €250,000
made up of 250,000 ordinary shares of €1 each.

On 5 November 2018, a further 5,624,406 shares of €1 each were issued and allotied to the
company's parent as consideration for an amount due by the Company to its parent.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Group.
Capital contribution

On 26 May 2020, the Company received additional capital contribution from the shareholders of the
parent company amounting to €637,560,
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13.

14.

Deferred fax asset
Group

Balance as at 1 January
Credited to profit and loss (Note 22)

At end of year

2020 2019
€ €

213,321 213,321
198,848 -

412,169 213,321

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a
principal tax rate of each of the jurisdictions in which the group’s companies operate.

The balance at 31 December represents:

Group

Temporary differences arising on:
- unutilised tax losses

- provisions
Borrowings
Group
2020 2019
€ €
Non-current
4.85% Secured Bonds 2028 8,003,557 8,972,097
Bank loan 449,000 -
Loan from related parttes 462,440 -

2020 2019

95,706 213,321
316,463 -

412,169 213,321

Company
2020 2019
€ €

9,003,557 8,972,097
449,000 -

9,914,997 8,972,097

9,452,557 8,972,097

The bonds are measured at the amount of the net proceeds adjusted for the amortisation of the
difference between the net proceeds and the redemption value of such bonds, using the effective

interest method as follows:

Group and Company

QOriginal face value of bonds issued

2020 2019
€ €

9,250,000 9,250,000

Bond issue costs
Accumulated amortisation

(314,560)  (314,560)
68,117 36,657

Closing net book amount of bond issue costs

9,003,557 8,972,087

Amortised cost and closing carrylng amount

8,003,557 8,972,097
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15.

Borrowings - continued

By virtue of an offering memorandum dated 12 November 2018, the Company issued €9,250,000
bonds with a face value of €100 each. The bonds have a coupon interest of 4.85% which is payable
annually in arrears, on 23 November of each year. The bonds are redeemable at par and are due
for redemption on 23 November 2028. The bonds were admitted on the Official List of the Malta
Stock Exchange on 12 November 2018, The quoted market price as at 31 December 2020 for the
bonds was €80, which in the opinion of the directors fairly represents the fair value of these financial

liabilities.
in accordance with the provisions of the prospectus, the proceeds from the bond issue have been
advanced by the Group to group related parties.

The effective interest rates on the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 is 3.0% per annum and
repayable until 30 May 2026.

The bank borrowings are secured by:

Pledge over deposit account held in the name of the company.
Guarantee by the Malta Development Bank.

Various undertakings by the directors, shareholders and sureties.
Subsidiary's joint and several guarantee on Bank's form.

Loans from related parties obtained by the Group are unsecured, interest free and repayable on 26
May 2025.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities associated with the right-of-use assets relate to the following types of assets:

Group 2020 2019
€ €

Non-current

Leasehold properties 8,666,452 12,320,031

Current

Leasehold properties 1,396,690 1,624,392

The total cash outflows for leases during the reporting period was €2,164,498 (2019: €2,713,011).
The contractual undiscounted cash flows atiributable to lease liablilitles as at 31 December are

analysed in Note 2.1(c).
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17.

Trade and other payables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Current
Trade and other payables 507,518 294,457 100,173 17,817
Amounts owed fo related parties 35,909 61,716 31,529 14,864
Amounts owed to parent 33,339 - 33,339
Accrued interest and expenses 296,752 225,052 148,736 55,216
873,618 581,225 313,777 87,897

Amounts owed to parent and related parties are unsecured, Interest free and repayable on demand.

Revenue
Period from
27 September
Year ended 2018 to
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Group € €
Rental income 1,569,253 4,693,812

The Group's revenues are derived from operations carried out in Italy. Considering the nature of the
Group’s aclivities, its non-current assets are predominantly located in ltaly. The Group largely derives
its revenue from related parties. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group granted
concessions and discounts to tenants and consequently conceded an aggregate of €2,768,720
(2019: €nil) representing rent charges forgone during the year. These concessions are deemed to be
equivalent to partial walver of lease payments emanating from the currently applicable terms and
conditions within the lease agreements, taking into account the substance implied in the content of
specific clauses within the agreements in place. These concessions are not considered to have arisen
out of a modification of the lease agreements. The term of the respective leases remained unchanged
and similarly the scope of the lease was not modified. The amounts of the concessions have been
treated as negative variable lease payments. Conseguently, the waived lease income arising from
the relief given to tenants has been recognised as a deduction in revenue during the financlal peried
in which the condition that triggered the reduced payments occurred.
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Expenses by nature

Group Company
Period from Period from
Year 27 September Year 27 September
ended 31 2018to ended 31 2018 to
December 31 December December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Depreciation of right of use assets
(Note 4) - net of rent discounts 2,017,562 2,838,636 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 5) 73,535 173,913 - -
Directors' fees (Note 21) 16,412 20,000 16,412 20,000
Listing and related compliance costs - 10,417 - 10,417
Legal and professional expenses 337,570 122,640 199,390 53,494
Management fee 50,004 58,335 50,004 58,335
Rent expense - 212,095 - -
Salaries and wages 32,348 71,454 - -
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,327,968 - - -
Cther expenses 293,502 145,110 7,265 41,519
Total cost of sales and administrative
expenses 4,148,901 3,652,600 273,071 183,765

Auditor's fees

Fees charged by the auditor for services rendered during the financial year/period ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 relates to the following:

2020 2019

Group  Company Group Company

€ € € €

Annual statutory audit 15,750 15,750 15,000 15,000
Tax compliance and related services 755 755 8,900 8,900
Advisory services - - 45,000 45,000
Other assurance services 6,000 6,000 - -
Other non-assurance services 25,000 25,000 - -
47,505 47,505 68,800 68,900
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20,

21,

Impairment on leasehold premia, net of recovery

Group Company
Period from Period from
Year 27 September Year 27 September
ended 31 201810 ended 31 2018to
December 31 December December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Impairment on leasehold premia (Note 4) 999,863 760,046 - -
Loss on iermination of leasehold
agreement 26,255 43,303 - -
1,026,118 803,349 . -
Recovery from parent - (286,123} - -
Net impairment on leasehold premia 1,026,118 517,226 - -
Finance costs
Group Company
Period from Period from
27 September . 27 September
Year ended 201810 Year ended 2018 to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 - 2020 2019
€ € € €
Interest charges on lease liabilities 774,478 1,020,616 - -
Bond interest cost 480,086 522,668 480,086 522,668
Interest charges on bank loans 1,572 - 1,572 -
1,256,136 1,543,284 481,658 522,668
Directors' emoluments
Group Company
Period from Period from
27 September 27 September
Year ended 2018{oc Yearended 2018to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Directors’ fees 16,412 20,000 16,412 20,000
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Tax (creditfexpense

Group Company
Period from Pericd from
27 September 27 September
Year ended 2018to  Year ended 2018 to
31 December 31 December 31 December 81 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Deferred tax credit (198,848) (213,321) - -
Current tax expense - 229,447 - 24,149
Overprovision in prior year {(30,369) - (7,570) -
Tax credits granted (364,910) - - -
Tax (credit)expense {594,627) 16,126 (7,570) 24,149

The tax on the loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable
tax rate as follows:

Grolip Company

Period from Period from

27 September 27 September

Year ended 2018to  Yearended . 2018 to

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € . €
Loss before tax {(4,829,978) (1,019,298) (2,711,331) {1,089,048)
Tax on loss @ 35% (1,680,492) (356,754) (948,966) (381,187)

Tax effect of.

Disallowed expenditure 1,491,644 356,302 948,966 388,738
Foreign tax suffered at source - 16,578 - 16,578
Cverprovision in prior vear (30,869) - {7,570) -
Tax credits granted (364,910) - - -
Tax (credit)expense (594,627) 16,126 {7,570} 24,149
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23.

24.

Cash generated from/{used in) operations

Group Company
Period from Period from
27 September 27 September
Year ended 2018to  Year ended 2018 to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Operating {loss)/profit (3,573,842) 523,986 (103,071) 131,235
Adjustments:
Depreciation (Nates 4 and 5) -
net of discounts 2,091,097 3,012,549 - -
Loss on termination of leasehold
Agreement {Note 19) 26,255 43,303 - -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use
assels 58,171 - - -
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 115,145 - - -
Impairment on leasehold premia —
net of recovery (Note 19) 999,863 473,923 - -
Changes in working capital: _
Trade and other receivables 716,501 (1,613,684) (527,014) (183,512)
Trade and other payables 247,324 3,511,157 180,880 5,712,303
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations ’ 680,514 5,961,234 {449,205) 5,860,026

in 2019, non-cash transactions include the issue and allotment of 5,624,406 shares of €1 each to the
company's parent as consideration for an amount due by the Company to its parent.

Net debt reconciliation

The table below sets out an analysis of net debt as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Cash and cash equivalents 540,381 802,194 239,415 210,488
Borrowings (9,914,997) (8,872,087) (9,452,557) (8,972,097)
Lease liabllities (10,063,142} (13,944,423) - -
Net debt (19,437,758) (22,314,326) (9,213,142) (8,761,609)

All the movements in the Company's net debt (borrowings and finance lease liabilities, net of cash
and cash equivalents) related only to cash flow movements and disclosed as part of the financing
activities in the statement of cash flows,
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25,

26,

27.

Related parties

The Group forms part of the Melite Retail Group. All companies forming part of the Melite Retail
Group, which are all ultimately owned by Melite Retail Limited, are considered to be related parties
In view of common ultimate shareholding.

The principal transactions carried out by the Group with related parties during the year/period ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are ouflined below:

- Rental income from fellow subsidiary within the Melite Retail Group amounting to €1,020,262 (2019:
€4,138,992).

- Management fees charged by parent amounting to €50,004 (2019; €58,335).

Amounts due to or from related parties are disclosed in Notes 8, 9, 14 and 16 to the financial
statements.

Key management personnel compensation, conslsting of remuneration to the company’s drrectors.
has been disclosed in Note 21.

Bonds of the Company held by directors at 31 December 2020 amounted to €Nil (2019; €50,000).

Events after the end of the reporting period
The progression of the COVID-19 pandemic during the initial months of 2021, has continued

impacting the Group and the operations of its subsidiary. COVID-19 has dragged on beyond initial
expectations and its impact on the retail sector in ltaly has been far more significant than anticipated.

Notwithstanding the complicated trading conditions in view of the adverse effect of the pandemic on
the retail sector in ltaly, in April 2021, management have managed to conclude negotiations and have

accepted an irrevocable offer from a third parly retail operator which has secured the sub-letting of
another nine stores as from 1 June 2021 for a period of 24 months.

These events have been described in more detail in note 1.1 to these financial statements.

Statutory information

The Melite Finance p.l.c. is a limited liability company and Is incorporated in Malta.

The immediate parent company of Melite Finance p.l.c. is Melite Retall Limited, a company registered
in Malta, with its registered address at Level 3, Valletta Buildings, South Street, Valletta, VLT1103.
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